

01/21/2010

ORDINANCE NO. _____

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 54, FEES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ROCHESTER HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, TO MODIFY AND SUPPLEMENT FEES CHARGED FOR VARIOUS CITY SERVICES, AND TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.

THE CITY OF ROCHESTER HILLS ORDAINS:

Section 1. Chapter 54 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rochester Hills shall be amended as follows:

Sec. 54-1-Sec. 54-31A. *No change.*

Sec. 54-32. Cemetery.

The fees for the cemetery shall be as follows:

- (1) Space fee, Sections 1, 2, 3, 5 and 6:
 - a. Residents\$500.00
 - b. Nonresidents1,000.00
 - c. Transfer fee from resident to nonresident.....500.00
- (2) Babyland space fee, Section 7:
 - Residents only; includes space, opening and closing, and ~~tentChapel~~; Monday through Saturday burials~~300.00~~350.00
- (3) Burial opening and closing fees:
 - a. Weekdays, includes ~~tentChapel~~~~700.00~~750.00
 - b. Saturdays.....~~1,000.00~~1,050.00
 - c. No Sundays or holidays
 - d. Disinterment – burials.....1,250.00
- (4) Monument foundation fee, per square inch0.75
- (5) Cremation space fee, Section 28:
 - a. Residents200.00
 - b. Nonresidents300.00
- (6) Cremation opening/closing fees:
 - a. Burial performed by cemetery sexton without family presence ..150.00

- b. Gravesite interment (Monday through Friday)300.00
- c. Gravesite interment (Saturday)400.00
- d. Use of Chapel in lieu of gravesite – add \$50.00 to cremation opening/closing fees.
- ~~d~~e. Disinterment – cremations300.00
- (7) Cremation Urns150.00

Sec. 54-33. *No change.*

Sec. 54-34. Copy costs.

The fees for copy costs shall be in accordance with the requirements of state law and shall be as follows:

- (1) Original document:~~per page~~.....~~\$0.25~~
 - a. ~~First page of document~~.....~~\$ 1.50~~
 - b. ~~Each additional page of document~~.....~~0.30~~
- (2) Print made of microfilm document:
 - a. First page of document..... 1.50
 - b. Each additional page of document 0.30
- (3) Poll books, per page0.50
- (4) Deeds/land contracts, per page0.50
- (5) Each copy of assessor's description card, per card0.50
- (6) Each page of a plat or property description map, per copy1.00
- (7) Assessor's sales data:
 - a. Per sheet0.50
 - b. Sales data history (one year of history), per book25.00
- (8) Valuation record, per copy0.50
- (9) Topographic map/blue line:
 - a. Quarter section, each.....25.00
 - b. Half section, each.....50.00
- (10) Topographic map/Mylar:
 - a. Quarter section, each.....50.00

- b. Half section, each.....100.00
- (11) Plan sheet:
 - a. Blue line (24" x 36"), each..... 5.00
 - b. Mylar, each5.00
- (12) Engineering services Xerox copies:
 - a. 24" x 36" print.....5.00
 - b. 18" x 24" print.....4.00
- (13) Engineering services microfilm, OCE:
 - a. 24" x 36" print.....7.00
 - b. 18" x 24" print.....5.00
 - c. 8 1/2" x 11" print.....3.00
- (14) Computer printout (not to be mailed), per page.....2.00
- (15) Tapes/DVD/CD (city):
 - a. Audiotape (~~tape provided by requester~~)provide by the city.....10.00
 - b. DVD ~~or CD~~ provided by the city10.00
 - C. CD provided by the city – per requested report10.00
- (16) Tax bills and tax receipts:
 - a. Property owner or mortgage company:
 - 1. One to five parcels No charge
 - 2. Six or more parcels:
 - i. Per copy0.50
 - ii. If mailed, per copy1.00
 - b. Nonproperty owner:
 - 1. Per copy0.50
 - 2. If mailed, per copy1.00

Sec. 54-35-54-44. *No change*

Sec. 54-45. Recording fees.

Recording fees shall be as follows:

- (1) First page.....\$~~9.00~~14.00
- (2) Each additional page.....~~2.00~~3.00

Sec. 54-46-54-47. No change.

Sec. 54-49. Voter registration materials.

The fees for voter registration materials shall be as follows:

- (1) Listings, per thousand names/address.....\$10.00
- (2) Labels:
 - (a) Per thousand names/addresses10.00
 - (b) Plus the cost of labels, per label.....0.01
- (3) Voter information on disc ~~— per report~~10.00
- (4) Voter information via electronic mail.....10.00

Sec. 54-50-54-151. No change.

Sec. 54-152. Permit application fee.

A nonrefundable application fee shall accompany each building permit application. The fee shall be as follows:

- (1) Residential additions/alterations\$ 75.00
- (2) Nonresidential additions/alterations.....~~100.00~~150.00
- (3) New residential buildings~~100.00~~150.00
- (4) New nonresidential buildings~~500.00~~650.00

Sec. 54-153. Building permit valuation.

The building permit fee shall be based on the estimated cost of the project as computed from the current International ~~Construction~~ Code Council (ICC) Building Valuation Data Report, exclusive of site work. The fee shall be based on the building construction valuation as follows:

- (1) Up to \$1,000.00.....\$ 75.00
- (2) Over \$1,000.00 to \$10,000.0075.00
 - Plus, for each additional \$1,000.00 or part thereof over \$1,000.00.....20.00
- (3) Over \$10,000.00.....255.00
 - Plus, for each additional \$1,000.00 or part thereof over \$10,000.00.....6.00

Sec. 54-154. Plan review fees.

(a) The building permit fee shall be based on the total estimated cost of the project as computed from the current International ~~Construction~~-Code Council (ICC) Building Valuation Data Report, exclusive of site work. Plan review fees shall be as follows:

- (1) ~~R-4R-3~~ and U plan review shall be computed at 0.00147 of the estimated construction cost or \$75.00, minimum.
- (2) All others shall be computed as follows:
 - a. Zero dollars to \$1,250,000.00 shall be computed at 0.00222 of the estimated construction cost or ~~\$100.00~~\$150.00 minimum.
 - b. Over \$1,250,000.00 shall be computed at 0.00074 of the estimated construction cost plus the first \$1,250,000.00 at 0.00222.

(b) For site plans associated with planning commission activities, an escrow balance of \$150.00 shall be established and maintained, which shall be used to pay applicable fees.

(c) Where review of construction documents is performed by city employees other than building department employees, the review fee shall be charged at \$75.00 per hour.

(d) Plan review of hazardous materials shall be charged at \$75 per hour.

(e) Plan review for accessibility, energy, structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, and fire protection shall be charged at 15% of the building plan review fee or \$150.00 minimum.

(f) Payment shall be in advance of the review based on estimated cost.

~~(dg)~~ Where review of construction documents is performed by outside consultants, the review fee shall be charged at ~~1.21.5~~ times the actual cost. Payment shall be in advance of the review based on estimated cost.

Sec. 54-155. Factory-built buildings.

The permit fees for factory-build buildings shall be as follows:

- (1) Within the MH district, the fee shall be ~~\$125.00~~\$160.00 per dwelling unit.
- (2) In other districts, the fee shall be the same as the building permit valuation.

Sec. 54-156. Certificate of occupancy.

The fees for certificates of occupancy shall be as follows:

- (1) Certificate of occupancy request.....\$150.00
- (2) Temporary certificate of occupancy, each request or extension.....~~50.00~~250.00

Sec. 54-157. Demolition fee.

The fees for demolition permits shall be as follows:

- (1) Per structure, up to 1,000 square feet of floor area~~\$120.00~~150.00
- (2) Each additional 1,000 square feet of floor area~~25.00~~35.00

Sec. 54-158. Construction or demolition bonds.

(a) *Specific fees.* The fees for construction or demolition bonds shall be as follows:

- (1) Demolition\$ 500.00
- (2) New buildings:
 - a. Each new single-family detached dwelling500.00
 - b. Each relocated dwelling2,000.00
 - c. Each new multidwelling building2,000.00
 - d. Each new nonresidential building2,000.00
- (3) Additions, alterations, repairs, accessory buildings, etc.
 - a. Residential (use group ~~R-4~~R-3 and U):
 - 1. Per \$1,000.00 valuation25.00
 - 2. Maximum500.00
 - b. Other use groups:
 - 1. Per \$1,000.00 valuation25.00
 - 2. Maximum2,000.00

(b) *Bond interest.* Upon cancellation, return or refund of building, construction or demolition bonds, the applicant/depositor shall not be entitled to interest.

Sec. 54-159-54-160. No change.

Sec. 54-161. Safety and special inspections.

The fees for safety and special inspections conducted under this article shall be an hourly rate of \$75.00 with a one-hour minimum per inspector.

Sec. 54-162-54-164. No change.

Sec. 54-191. Alarm system only.

The fees for fire alarm systems, only, shall be as follows:

- (1) Building area less than 12,000 square feet.....~~\$210.00~~265.00

- (2) Building area less than 25,000 square feet.....~~280.00~~355.00
- (3) Building area less than 50,000 square feet.....~~360.00~~455.00
- (4) Building area less than or equal to 100,000 square feet~~490.00~~620.00
- (5) Building area more than 100,000 square feet~~490.00~~620.00
 Plus, per 1,000 square feet over first 100,000 square feet~~2.00~~3.00
- (6) Installation of central station supervision of existing suppression system
~~60.00~~225.00
- (7) Modification of less than six detectors of an existing system~~60.00~~150.00
- (8) Multistory, each floor above the first, one-half the original fee

Sec. 54-192. Fire suppression systems with or without alarm.

The fees for fire suppression system permits shall be as follows:

- (1) Modification of less than six heads of an existing system, each~~\$120.00~~155.00
- (2) Limited area suppression system~~120.00~~155.00
- (3) Building area less than 25,000 square feet.....~~322.00~~410.00
- (4) Building area less than 50,000 square feet.....~~414.00~~525.00
- (5) Building area less than or equal to 100,000 square feet~~564.00~~715.00
- (6) Building area more than 100,000 square feet~~564.00~~715.00
 (a) Plus, per 1,000 square feet over first 100,000 square feet~~2.00~~3.00
- (7) Flushing, each~~60.00~~75.00
- (8) Multistory, each floor above the first, one-half the original fee.
- (9) Fire Pump.....200.00
- (10) Kitchen Hood Systems.....300.00
- (11) Special Hazard300.00

Sec. 54-193-54-194. No change.

Sec. 54-195. Plan review fees.

Plan review fees made pursuant to this division shall be as follows:

- (1) ~~If the review is made by city employees, there shall be an hourly charge at the rate of \$75.00.~~
- ~~(2) If the review is made by private consultants, payments shall be made in advance at a rate of 1.2 times the actual cost.~~

For the purposes of this division, the fees for plan review and other miscellaneous fees shall be provided in division 1 of this article.

Sec. 54-196-54-197. *No change.*

~~Sec. 54-198.~~ ~~Other miscellaneous fees.~~

~~Other miscellaneous fees charged pursuant to this division shall be as provided in division 1 of this article.~~

Sec. 54-226. Items.

The fees for plumbing items shall be as follows:

(1)	Air Arrestors	\$8.00
(2)	Air Admittance.....	8.00
(3)	Back Water Valve	8.00
(4)	Backflow preventors, each.....	\$12.00
	(a) Lawn Irrigation	\$30.00
	(b) 3/8-1”	30.00
	(c) 1 1/4-3”	60.00
	(d) 3” and Larger	125.00
(25)	Bathtubs, each.....	6.00 8.00
	(a) Whirlpool Bath.....	25.00
(36)	Bidets, each.....	6.00 8.00
(47)	Building drain to sewer connection in mobile home park, each.....	18.00 23.00
(8)	Dental Chair	8.00
(59)	Dishwashers, each.....	6.00 8.00
	(a) Commercial.....	16.00
(610)	Drinking fountains, each.....	6.00 8.00
(711)	Floor drains, each.....	6.00 8.00
	(a) Trench Drains.....	16.00
(812)	Hose bibbs, each.....	6.00 8.00
(913)	Humidifiers, each.....	6.00 8.00
	(a) Commercial.....	56.00

(14) Ice Maker	8.00
(105) Interceptors, each	12.00 16.00
(146) Laundry trays; washer standpipes, each.....	6.00 8.00
(127) Lavatories, each	6.00 8.00
(18) Medical gases per inspection	75.00
(19) Mobile Home in MH district:	
<u>Water and sewer connection</u>	<u>45.00</u>
(1320) Pump lifts, each.....	6.00 8.00
(1421) Roof sumps, storm conductor drains, each	6.00 25.00
(1522) Sanitary building drain, each	6.00 8.00
(1623) Sewage ejectors, each	12.00 30.00
(1724) Showers, each	6.00 8.00
(1825) Sinks (any description), each	6.00 8.00
(26) Soda Fountain	8.00
(27) Special piping and storage systems.....	8.00
(1928) Stacks and revents, each	6.00 8.00
(209) Sumps or inside bleeder drains, each.....	12.00 16.00
(30) Tempering valves.....	8.00
(31) Thermal expansion tank.....	8.00
(32) Trap primer	8.00
(2133) Underground (when not called for w/rough), each.....	30.00 75.00
(2234) Urinals, each	6.00 8.00
(2335) Waste disposers, each	6.00 8.00
(2436) Water closets, each.....	6.00 8.00
(2537) Water heaters, each	6.00 25.00
(2638) Other openings, each.....	6.00 8.00

Sec. 54-227. Factory-built buildings.

The plumbing fees for factory-built buildings, other than MH districts, shall be ~~\$125.00~~160.00 per unit.

Sec. 54-228. Water distribution.

The fees for water distribution shall be based on the largest size pipe in a building or space as follows:

- (1) One-inch or smaller pipe.....~~\$30.00~~40.00
- (2) Over one-inch to two-inch pipe~~60.00~~75.00
- (3) Larger than two-inch pipe.....~~100.00~~126.00

Sec. 54-229. Minimum permit fee.

The minimum plumbing permit fee shall be ~~\$30.00~~40.00 plus the items listed in section 54-226.

Sec. 54-230-54-231. *No change.*

Sec. 54-232. Cancellation of permit.

If a plumbing permit is canceled, all monies paid shall be refunded except 25 percent of the permit fee, plus a base fee of ~~\$30.00~~40.00 and \$75.00 per inspection.

Sec. 54-233-54-260. *No change.*

Sec. 54-261. Temporary or permanent service.

The fees for temporary or permanent electrical service shall be as follows:

- 100 amps or less, each service~~\$20.00~~25.00
- 400 amps or less, each service~~45.00~~60.00
- 800 amps or less, each service~~75.00~~95.00
- Over 800 amps~~100.00~~130.00

Sec. 54-262. New, extended or altered circuits.

The fees for new, extended or altered electrical circuits shall be as follows:

- (1) Each circuit~~\$5.00~~7.00
- (2) The following fees are in addition to the circuit fee:
 - a. Lighting fixtures; smoke detectors:
 - 1. First 50 fixtures~~15.00~~20.00
 - 2. Each additional 50 or part thereof.....~~10.00~~15.00
 - b. HVAC connections:
 - 1. Heating units:
 - i. Up to 100,000 Btu's~~5.00~~7.00

	ii.	Over 100,000 Btu's or rooftop units.....	20.00 <u>25.00</u>
2.	Refrigerator or a/c units:		
	i.	Zero to 2.5 tons	10.00 <u>15.00</u>
	ii.	Over 2.5 to 4.5 tons or rooftop units.....	20.00 <u>25.00</u>
	iii.	Over 4.5 tons.....	30.00 <u>40.00</u>
	iv.	Over 30 hp.....	45.00 <u>60.00</u>
c.	Appliances:		
	1.	Electrical space heating, each room.....	5.00 <u>7.00</u>
	2.	Range, oven, water heater, dryer, water pump, dishwasher, each	5.00 <u>7.00</u>
d.	Bus duct, each 100 feet or less.....		20.00 <u>25.00</u>
e.	Feeders, each.....		10.00 <u>15.00</u>
f.	Underfloor duct, each 100 feet or less		10.00 <u>15.00</u>
g.	Motors, power units, welders, etc.:		
	1.	Power plug, each.....	5.00 <u>7.00</u>
	2.	One-fourth to 5 hp.....	5.00 <u>7.00</u>
	3.	Over 5 to 10 hp	10.00 <u>15.00</u>
	4.	Over 10 to 20 hp	15.00 <u>20.00</u>
	5.	Over 20 hp.....	25.00 <u>35.00</u>
h.	Transformers:		
	1.	Zero to 25 kva	10.00 <u>15.00</u>
	2.	Over 25 to 75 kva.....	20.00 <u>25.00</u>
	3.	Over 75 to 150 kva.....	30.00 <u>40.00</u>
	4.	Over 150 kva.....	50.00 <u>65.00</u>
i.	Generators:		
	1.	Zero to 10 kw	25.00 <u>35.00</u>
	2.	Over 10 to 50 kw.....	35.00 <u>45.00</u>
	3.	Over 50 kw.....	50.00 <u>65.00</u>
j.	Underground, each inspection (when not called for w/rough)		30.00 <u>40.00</u>

- k. Signs:
 - 1. Connections, each sign.....~~20.00~~25.00
 - 2. Interior or exterior tag inspection~~20.00~~25.00
 - 1. Hot tubs, spas, swimming pools~~45.00~~60.00
- m. Interruptible a/c.....~~10.00~~15.00

~~Sec. 54-263. Alarm systems.~~

~~The fees for alarm systems shall be as follows:~~

- ~~(1) — Building area less than 12,000 square feet.....\$210.00~~
- ~~(2) — Building area less than 25,000 square feet.....280.00~~
- ~~(3) — Building area less than 50,000 square feet.....360.00~~
- ~~(4) — Building area less than or equal to 100,000 square feet490.00~~
- ~~(5) — Building area more than 100,000 square feet490.00~~
- ~~Plus, per 1,000 square feet over first 100,000 square feet2.00~~
- ~~(6) — Installation of central station; supervision of existing suppression system, application fee does not apply.....90.00~~
- ~~(7) — Modification of less than six detectors of an existing system, application fee does not apply.....90.00~~
- ~~(8) — Multistory, each floor above first, one-half original fee~~

Sec. 54-264. Factory-built buildings.

The electrical fees for factory-built buildings, in other than MH districts, shall be \$~~125.00~~160.00 per unit.

Sec. 54-265. Minimum permit fee.

The minimum electrical permit fee shall be \$~~30.00~~40.00 plus the line items listed in this division.

Sec. 54-266-54-267. No change.

Sec. 54-268. Cancellation of permit.

If an electrical permit is canceled, all permit monies shall be refunded except 25 percent of the permit fee, plus a base fee of \$~~30.00~~40.00 and \$75.00 per inspection.

Sec. 54-269. Plan review and other miscellaneous fees.

~~The fees for electrical plan review and other miscellaneous fees shall be as follows:~~

- ~~(1) For review by city employees, the fee shall be an hourly rate of \$75.00.~~
- ~~(2) When work is done by private consultants, the payments shall be made in advance, and the fee shall be 1.2 times the actual cost.~~

For the purposes of this division, the fees for plan review and other miscellaneous fees shall be provided in division 1 of this article.

Sec. 54-270-54-301. *No change.*

Sec. 54-302. ~~Nonsolid fuel burning equipment~~Items.

The permit fees for nonsolid fuel burning equipment (furnaces, boilers, incinerators, etc.), shall be as follows:

- ~~(1) Up to 100,000 Btu's input, each unit\$40.00~~
- ~~(2) Over 100,000 Btu's input or rooftop unit, each unit.....60.00~~

The fees for mechanical items shall be as follows:

- (1) Heating Equipment (furnace, boilers, pool heaters, etc.)
 - a. Residential up to 300,000 BTU input – each unit.....\$75.00
 - b. Residential over 300,000 BTU input – each unit.....\$95.00
 - c. Multi-family and non-residential up to 300,000 BTU input each unit
.....\$115.00
 - d. Multi-family and non-residential over to 300,000 BTU input each unit
.....\$150.00
- (2) Air Conditioning and Refrigeration
 - *Under 1-1/2 HP, self-contained, no permit required
 - a. Residential 1-1/2 to 5 ton – each unit\$75.00
 - b. Multi-family and non-residential 1-1/2 to 5 ton\$115.00
 - c. Multi-family and non-residential over 5 ton: \$115.00 PLUS \$10.00 per ton or fraction over 5 ton
- (3) Items
 - a. Chimney/flue liners – each\$25.00
 - b. Duct smoke detectors\$35.00
 - c. Electronic air cleaners – each\$8.00
 - d. Gas vent – each\$25.00
 - e. Humidifiers – each\$8.00

- f. Multi-family, non-residential humidifier – each.....\$75.00
- g. Water heater – each (includes vent).....\$25.00
- h. Zoned duct hydronic system – per zone\$35.00
- i. Multi-family, non-residential zoned duct hydronic system – per zone
.....\$75.00
- j. Miscellaneous\$35.00
- (4) Process Piping (gas, fuel, oil, air, water and steam, etc.)
 - a. Chillers – each.....\$100.00
 - b. Cooling tower – each\$100.00
 - c. Condensate receivers – each\$100.00
 - d. Distribution piping – up to 200 feet.....\$35.00
 - e. Distribution piping – each additional 200 feet.....\$20.00
 - f. Evaporative condensers – each\$100.00
 - g. Gas opening – each\$8.00
 - h. Pressure test – residential.....\$35.00
 - i. Pressure test – Multi-family and non-residential\$75.00
 - j. Underground inspection – each\$75.00
- (5) HVAC Distribution Systems (Ducts, Air, Water and Steam, Fuel Oil, Gas and Hydronic Piping, etc.)
 - a. Residential – each system\$35.00
 - b. Multi-family and non-residential – up to
200 feet (with each system)\$75.00
 - c. Multi-family and non-residential – each additional 200 feet.....\$20.00
 - d. Heat and energy recovery units – each\$35.00
 - e. In-floor hydronic piping – up to 1,000 feet.....\$75.00
 - f. In-floor hydronic piping – each additional
1,000 feet or fraction over 1,000 feet.....\$35.00
 - g. Underground inspection – each (when not called with rough)\$75.00
 - h. VAV boxes – each\$20.00
- (6) Fire and Smoke Dampers

- a. Fire damper – each.....\$8.00
- b. Smoke damper – first.....\$75.00
- c. Smoke damper – each additional.....\$35.00
- (7) Solid Fuel Equipment (Includes Chimney)
 - a. Wood stoves and furnaces, factory-built fireplaces, etc. – each (ALL TO BE UNDER PERMIT).....\$55.00
 - b. Chimney only – each.....\$35.00
- (8) Storage Tanks (Gas, Oil, etc.) – each.....\$75.00
- (9) Vent Systems (Kitchen Hoods, Ventilation Fans, Bath Fans, Make-up and Combustion Air, Dryer, etc.)
 - a. Kitchen hood type I.....\$115.00
 - b. Kitchen hood type II.....\$75.00
 - c. Make-up and combustion air (mechanical or natural) – each.....\$75.00
 - d. Residential system – each.....\$8.00
 - e. Miscellaneous non-residential systems – each.....\$40.00
 - f. Ventilation fan – less than 300 cfm.....\$18.00
 - g. Ventilation fan – greater than 300 cfm.....\$75.00

~~Sec. 54-303. Refrigeration, air conditioners and heat pumps.~~

The permit fees for refrigeration, air conditioners and heat pumps shall be as follows:

- (1) ~~Under 1-112 hp, self-contained, no permit required.~~
- (2) ~~Zero to 2.5 tons, each unit.....\$30.00~~
- (3) ~~Over 2.5 to 4.5 tons or rooftop unit, each unit.....50.00~~
- (4) ~~Over 4.5 tons.....55.00~~
- (5) ~~Over 20 hp.....65.00~~

~~Sec. 54-304. Electronic air cleaners and humidifiers.~~

The permit fees for electronic air cleaners and humidifiers shall be \$6.00 each.

~~Sec. 54-305. Cooling towers.~~

The permit fee for cooling towers shall be \$35.00.

Sec. 54-306.—Chillers.

The permit fees for chillers shall be \$50.00.

Sec. 54-307.—Distribution systems.

The permit fees for ducts, air, water and steam, fuel oil, gas and hydronic piping, etc., shall be as follows:

- (1) — Up to 200 feet with each heater, furnace, or appliance.....\$25.00
- (2) — Each additional 200 feet.....12.00
- (3) — Underground (when not called for w/rough), each inspection30.00

Sec. 54-308.—Gas piping.

The permit fees for gas piping shall be as follows:

- (1) — Water heater, range, barbecue, fireplace, etc., each outlet.....\$6.00
- (2) — Pressure test, first hour minimum55.00

Sec. 54-309.—Class AA or gas vent chimneys.

The permit fees for class AA or gas vent factory built chimneys shall be as follows:

- (1) — Up to eight inches inside diameter, each\$6.00
- (2) — Over eight inches inside diameter, each12.00

Sec. 54-310.—Flue dampers.

The permit fees for flue dampers shall be as follows:

- (1) — Installation, each damper\$6.00
- (2) — Heater unit duct coils12.00

Sec. 54-311.—Solid fuel equipment.

The permit fees for wood stoves and furnaces, factory built fireplaces, etc., all to be under permit. shall be \$40.00 for each unit.

Sec. 54-312.—Storage tanks.

The permit fees for gas, oil, etc., storage tanks shall be \$70.00 for each tank.

Sec. 54-313.—Ventilation systems.

The permit fees for ventilation systems shall be as follows:

- (1) — Nonresidential, each unit\$30.00
- (2) — All residential: dryer, bath, kitchen hoods, etc., each6.00

Sec. 54-314. Minimum permit fee.

The minimum mechanical permit fee shall be \$~~30.00~~40.00 plus the permit fees in this division.

Sec. 54-315-54-316. *No change.*

Sec. 54-317. Cancellation of permit.

If a mechanical permit is canceled, all monies shall be refunded except 25 percent of the permit fee, plus a base fee of \$~~30.00~~40.00 and \$75.00 per inspection.

Sec. 54-318-54-345. *No change.*

Sec. 54-346. Moving of buildings.

The permit fee for moving of a building, as provided in section 18-430, shall be \$~~150.00~~190.00.

Sec. 54-347-Sec. 54-436. *No change.*

Sec. 54-437. Emergency medical services.

- (1) Basic life support (ALS and ALSI)\$425.00
- (2) Advanced life support600.00
- (3) Advanced life support (ALS2).....750.00
- (4) Fee for oxygen40.00
- (5) Fee for transportation (per mile).....10.00
- (6) Fee for Defibrillation50.00
- (7) Extrication.....250.00
- (8) Treat without Transport150.00
- (79) Operating While Intoxicated (OWI) . . . Billings will be based upon actual expenditures incurred.
- (810) Preliminary Breath Test5.00

Section 2. Severability. This ordinance and each article, section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, part, provision, sentence, word and portion thereof are hereby declared to be severable, and if they or any of them are declared to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby provided that the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected thereby.

Section 3. Repeal, Effective Date, Adoption.

(1) Repeal. All regulatory provisions contained in other City ordinances, which are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance, are hereby repealed.

(2) Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective on _____, following its publication in the *Rochester Post* on _____, 2010.

(3) Adoption. This ordinance was adopted by the City Council of the City of Rochester Hills at a meeting thereof held on _____, 2010.

Bryan K. Barnett, Mayor
City of Rochester Hills

CERTIFICATE

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCHESTER HILLS AT A MEETING THEREOF ON _____, 2010.

Jane Leslie, Clerk
City of Rochester Hills